
 
LAFCO of Monterey County 
   _ 

 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
    LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION  

OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 

Monday, December 2, 2013 
4:00 p.m. 

 
Board of Supervisors Chambers 

Monterey County Government Center 
168 West Alisal Street, First Floor 

Salinas, California 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The Local Agency Formation Commission welcomes you to its meetings.  This meeting has been noticed according to the Brown 
Act.  If you want to submit documents, please bring 15 copies for distribution.  The meeting will be broadcast live on Comcast 
Cable TV Channel 28, and is rebroadcast every Monday at 4:00 p.m.  Agendas and reports are available on our website at least 72 
hours before each meeting. 

 

Roll Call 
 
Call to Order 
 
Pledge Of Allegiance 
 
Public Comments 
Anyone may address the Commission briefly about items not already on the Agenda.  Please fill out a Speaker Request Form 
available on the rostrum. 
 
Consent Agenda                                                                                                          
All items on the Consent Agenda will be approved in one motion and there will be no discussion on individual items, unless a 
Commissioner or member of the public requests a specific item to be pulled from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion.  
 
1.      Draft Minutes from the October 28, 2013 LAFCO Regular Meeting 
           Recommended Action:    Approve minutes. 
 
2.        Draft Meeting Notes of Budget and Finance Committee Meeting of November 7, 2013 
           Recommended Action:   Accept meeting notes. 
 
 

                          2013  
          Commissioners 

 
                                      Chair 
                 Louis R. Calcagno  
                   County Member  

 
                             Vice Chair 
                Steve Snodgrass  

     Special District Member  
 

              Fernando Armenta  
County Member, Alternate 

 
          Sherwood Darington  
                     Public Member 

 
                       Matt Gourley 
  Public Member, Alternate 

 
                             Joe Gunter   
     Alternate, City Member 

          
                       Maria Orozco 
                        City Member 

                                           
                 Warren E. Poitras 

       Special District Member, 
                                 Alternate 

 
                            Ralph Rubio 
                          City Member 

      
                       Simón Salinas 
                   County Member 

                 
                  Graig R. Stephens  
       Special District Member 

 
                                 

                            Staff 
 

           Kate McKenna, AICP 
                 Executive Officer 

 
 

132 W. Gabilan Street, #102 
               Salinas, CA  93901 

 
                       P. O. Box 1369 
                Salinas, CA  93902 

 
          Voice:  831-754-5838 
              Fax:  831-754-5831 

 
  
www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 

  



3.        Approve Expenditures for the Month of October 2013 

         Recommended Action:   Approve warrant list. 
 

4.      Accept a List of Anticipated Future Agenda Items 

          Recommended Action:   Accept list.  
 

5.      Adopt Schedule of Regular LAFCO Meetings for 2014 

          Recommended Action:   Adopt schedule. 
 

New Business 
 
6.      Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013      

         Recommended Action:    Receive presentation from Karen Campbell, CPA, Bianchi, Kasavan and 
         Pope, LLP, and approve the Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013.   
 

7.      Financial Statements for Period Ending June 30, 2013 

                Recommended Action:   Receive a presentation from Mike Briley, CPA, Managing Partner, Hayashi &    
         Wayland Accounting and Consulting, LLP, and approve the Financial Statements for the Period Ending 
         June 30, 2013.  
 
8.      Financial Statements for Period Ending September 30, 2013 

          Recommended Action:   Approve the Financial Statements for the Period Ending September 30, 
          2013.  
 

  9.      Legislative Report from the California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions  
         CALAFCO).  
         Recommended Action:   Receive report as information, or provide direction regarding the legislative   
         activities of CALAFCO. 
 

Public Hearing (Continued)  
 
10.     Continued Public Hearing from October 28, 2013 to Consider the Proposed  “Highlands Point Sanitary  
        Association” Annexation  Involving Expansion of the Carmel Area Wastewater District Sphere of  
        Influence and Annexation to the District. The Annexation Area Consists of Nine Single-Family Residential  
        Parcels Located West of the Highlands Inn and State Route 1, Approximately Five Miles South of Carmel- 
        By-The-Sea.  (LAFCO File 13-04) 
        Recommended Action:    Conduct Public Hearing and Adopt Resolution: 
                                                       (1)    Considering a Negative Declaration adopted for the project by the   
                                                                County of Monterey pursuant to the California Environmental Quality  
                                                                Act (CEQA) Guidelines;   
                                                    (2)   Approving an update of the Sphere of Influence of the Carmel Area  
                                                                Wastewater District;  
                                                       (3)   Approving the proposed annexation, and 
                                                    (4)   Waiving Conducting Authority (“protest”) proceedings.  
 
Executive Officer Reports  
The Executive Officer may make brief announcements about LAFCO activities, for information only.  
  
 11.     Notice of Administrative Approval of Domestic Water Services Outside of District Boundaries by 
          Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District to Five Areas Formerly Served by Alisal Corporation 
          (LAFCO File No. 13-07) – Information Only  
 
 
 
 
 

LAFCO – Regular Meeting – December 2, 2013  Page 2 of 3 
 



Commissioner Comments 
Individual Commissioners may comment briefly on matters within the jurisdiction of LAFCO.  No discussion or action is appropriate other than referral to staff 
or setting a matter as a future agenda item.  
 
Adjournment To The Next Meeting  
 
The next Regular LAFCO Meeting – Monday, January 27, 2014 at 4:00 p.m. 
 
  
Alternative Formats and Facility Accommodations:  If requested, the agenda will be made available in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as 
required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC 12132) and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof.  
Also if requested, facility accommodations will be made for persons with disabilities.  Please contact (831) 754-5838 for assistance.   

 
 
 
 

LAFCO – Regular Meeting – December 2, 2013  Page 3 of 3 
 



 
AGENDA 

ITEM 
NO. 1. LAFCO of Monter 

   _ 
 

                        LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
                              

 
 

Draft MINUTES 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY 

COUNTY 
Adopted _______ 

 
Monday, October 28, 2013 

4:00 p.m. 
 

Board of Supervisors Chambers 
Monterey County Government Center 

168 West Alisal Street, First Floor 
Salinas, California 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Local Agency Formation Commission was called to order by Chair Calcagno 
at 4:01 p.m. in the Monterey County Board of Supervisors Chambers. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present 
Commissioner Calcagno (Chair) 
Commissioner Snodgrass (Vice Chair) 
Commissioner Darington 
Commissioner Rubio (Arrived at 4:20 p.m.) 
Commissioner Salinas 
Commissioner Stephens  
 
Members Absent (Excused Absences) 
 
Commissioners Gourley, Gunter, Orozco and Poitras  
 
Members not Present (Presence Not Required) 
Commissioner Armenta  
 
 
 

 
 

                          2013  
          Commissioners 

 
                                   Chair 

                Louis R. Calcagno  
                 County Member  

 
                             Vice Chair 
                Steve Snodgrass  

     Special District Member  
 

              Fernando Armenta  
County Member, Alternate 

 
          Sherwood Darington  
                     Public Member 

 
                       Matt Gourley 
  Public Member, Alternate 

 
                             Joe Gunter   
     Alternate, City Member 

          
                       Maria Orozco 
                        City Member 

                                           
                 Warren E. Poitras 

       Special District Member, 
                              Alternate 

 
                             Ralph Rubio 
                           City Member 

 
                         Simón Salinas 
                     County Member 

                 
                  Graig R. Stephens  
        Special District Member 

 
                                 

                            Staff 
 

           Kate McKenna, AICP 
                 Executive Officer 

 
 

132 W. Gabilan Street, #102 
                 Salinas, CA  93901 

 
                       P. O. Box 1369 
                Salinas, CA  93902 

 
          Voice:  831-754-5838 
              Fax:  831-754-5831 

 
   www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 

  



 Staff Present 
Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer  
Leslie  J. Girard, LAFCO General Counsel  
Gail Lawrence, LAFCO Clerk to the Comission  
Darren McBain, LAFCO Senior Analyst 
Mari Rodin, LAFCO Associate Analyst  

  
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Chair Calcagno asked Commissioner Salinas to lead the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

  
4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS  

There were no Public Comments on items not on the Agenda.   
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
  
 a. Approve the Draft Minutes of October 28, 2013. 
  
 b. Accept the Warrant Registers for August and September 2013. 
  
 c. Accept the List of Anticipated Future Agenda Items. 
  
 d. Receive Report Regarding Activities of the California Association of Local Agency 

Formation Commission. 
  
 There were no Commissioner or public comments for the Consent items. 
  
 Commission Action   

Upon motion by Commissioner Salinas, seconded by Commissioner Snodgrass, the 
Consent Items were unanimously approved and accepted. Absent: Commissioners Orozco 
and Rubio. 

  
6. PUBLIC HEARING    
  
 a. Consider the “Highlands Point Sanitary Association Annexation” involving 

Expansion of the Carmel Area Wastewater District Sphere of Influence and 
Annexation to the District of Ten Single-Family Residential Parcels: APNs 241-
182-004/005 (to be Merged), -012, -015, -016, -018, -020, -023, -024, -025, and -
026; The Parcels are Located West of the Highlands Inn and State Route 1, 
Approximately Five Miles South of Carmel-by-the-Sea.  The Parcels Contain Nine 
Existing Residences and One New Residence Under Construction. The Purpose 
of the Proposal is to Allow These Parcels to Connect to the District’s Wastewater 
System.  (LAFCO File No. 13-06). (Continued from August 26, 2013 Meeting). 
 

Executive Officer McKenna provided a report recommending that this item be continued 
to the LAFCO meeting of December 2.  There were no public or Commission comments. 

2 
 



  
  Commission Action 

 Upon motion by Commissioner Salinas, seconded by Commissioner Snodgrass, the 
Commission unanimously approved continuing Agenda Item 6.a “Highlands Point 
Sanitary Association Annexation” to the December 2, 2013 Regular Commission 
Meeting.  Absent: Commissioners Orozco and Rubio. 

       
 b. Consider the “Rubenstein/Rotunda Drive Annexation” Involving Annexation to 

the Carmel Area Wastewater District of Four Parcels Developed With Three 
Existing Single-Family Residences.  The Parcels are Within the District’s Existing 
Sphere of Influence and are Located on Rotunda Drive in Carmel Valley, 
Approximately One Half Mile from Highway 1.  The Purpose of the Proposal is to 
Allow These Properties to Connect to the District’s Wastewater System.  
Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 015-043-007 and -031 (Rubenstein), -018 (Doolittle), 
and -029 (Struve).  (LAFCO File No. 13-06).  

 
 Senior Analyst McBain provided a report.  There were no public comments.  
  
 Commission Action  

 Upon motion by Commissioner Darington, seconded by Commissioner Stephens, the 
 Commission unanimously adopted a Resolution approving the “Rubenstein/Rotunda 
Drive Annexation” and waiving the Conducting Authority (“Protest”) Proceedings. 
Absent: Commissioners Orozco and Rubio. 

  
7. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 a. Consider a Comment Letter for a Draft Environmental Impact Report for the 

Proposed “Paraiso Springs Resort” Project (County of Monterey Resource 
Management Agency).  
 

 Executive McKenna provided an oral report. 
 

 Public Comments 
 Several individuals provided comments to the Commission. 
  
 Commission Action  

After discussion, upon motion by Commissioner Salinas, seconded by Commissioner 
Stephens, the Commission unanimously authorized a Comment Letter for a Draft 
Environmental Impact Report for the proposed “Paraiso Springs Resort”.  Absent: 
Commissioner Orozco. 

  
8. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
 a. Executive Officer McKenna reported on an invitation to make a shared services 

      presentation to the Pacific Grove City Council on November 6. 
      

3 
 



  b.   Several Commissioners made comments. 
  

9. ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT MEETING 
  
 Chair Calcagno adjourned the meeting at 4:23 pm.  The next regular LAFCO meeting is 

scheduled for Monday, December 2, 2013 at 4:00 p.m.  
 

4 
 



 
AGENDA 

ITEM 
NO. 2 

LAFCO of Monterey County 
   _ 

 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 

 

Draft MEETING NOTES 
BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
Monday, November 7, 2013, 1:30 p.m. 

LAFCO Office 
132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 

Salinas, California  93901 
 

1. Call To Order  
   
 The Budget and Finance Committee of the Local Agency Formation 

Commission of Monterey County was called to order by Commissioner 
Salinas at 1:30 p.m. 

   
2. Roll Call  
   
 Members Present  
 Commissioner Ralph Rubio 

Commissioner Simón Salinas 
 

 Commissioner Graig Stephens  
   
 Staff Present  
 Kate McKenna, Executive Officer 

Gail Lawrence, Clerk to Commission 
 
Others Present 

 

 Mike Briley, CPA,  Managing Partner, Hayashi & Wayland  
 Karen L. Campbell, CPA, Bianchi, Kasavan & Pope, LLP   
 William Merry, General Manager, Monterey Regional Waste 

Management  District 
 

 Dennis Allion, Board Chair, Monterey Regional Waste Management 
District 

 

   
3. Public Comment  
 There were no public comments on matters not on the agenda.   

  

                           
2012  

Committee 
 

Chair 
Simón Salinas 

County Member 
 

Ralph Rubio 
City Member,  

LAFCO Chair 
 

Graig R. Stephens  
Special District Member 

 
 
 
 

Staff 
 

Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 

 
 
 
 

132 W. Gabilan Street, #102 
Salinas, CA  93901 

 
P. O. Box 1369 

Salinas, CA  93902 
 

Voice:  831-754-5838 
Fax:  831-754-5831 

 
    www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

  



4. Discussion of LAFCO Budget, Work Program, and Project Fee Collections 
   
 Executive Officer McKenna gave an oral report.  MRWMD Board Chair Mr. Allion provided 

introductory remarks. MRWMD General Manager Merry expressed satisfaction with the LAFCO fee 
collection process for projects.  Some MRWMD Board Members have proposed that LAFCO should 
begin to charge each local agency for the direct cost of preparing municipal service reviews. 
Committee members requested that the Executive Officer provide information for discussion at a 
future meeting. 

   
5.    Consider Draft Annual Audit for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013 
   
 Ms. Karen Campbell, Bianchi, Kasavan & Pope, LLP, provided the report on the Draft Audit for Fiscal 

Year Ending June 30, 2013.  
  
 Committee Members discussed the Draft Audit and minor changes in content and formatting with 

Executive Officer McKenna, Ms. Campbell, and Mr. Briley.  There was no public comment.   
  
 Upon motion by Commissioner Rubio, seconded by Commissioner Stephens, the Committee 

unanimously moved to recommend that the full Commission accept the Draft Audit for Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 2013.  

  
6. Consider Draft Year-End Financial Statements for Period Ending June 30, 2013                                            
   
 Mr. Mike Briley, Hayashi & Wayland, provided the report on the Financial Statements for the Period 

Ending June 30, 2013. 
   
 Committee members discussed the draft financial statements with Executive Officer McKenna and 

Mr. Briley. There was no public comment. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Rubio, seconded by Commissioner Stephens, the Committee 
unanimously moved to recommend that the full Commission accept the Draft Year-End Financial 
Statement for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013. 

  
7. Consider Draft Financial Statements for Quarter One Period Ending September 30, 2013 
   
 Mr. Mike Briley, Hayashi & Wayland provided the report on the Financial Statements for the Period 

Ending September 30, 2013. 
   
 Committee members discussed the draft Financial Statements with Executive Officer McKenna and 

Mr. Briley. There was no public comment.  
  
 Upon motion by Commissioner Salinas, seconded by Commissioner Stephens, the Committee 

unanimously moved to recommend that the full Commission accept the Draft Financial Statement 
for Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2013.  

2 
 



 
8.     Consider Profit/Loss Budget vs. Actuals Worksheet Dated October 25, 2013.  
   
 Executive Officer McKenna provided an informational report on the profit/loss budget vs. actuals 

worksheet dated October 25, 2013. 
   
 Committee members discussed the worksheet with Executive Officer McKenna and Mr. Briley.  There 

was no public comment.  
   
 The Committee unanimously received the worksheet. 
   
9. Consider CalPERS Retirement Plan Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013  
   
 Kate McKenna, Executive Officer, reported that the updated report is not yet available.  This item is 

for information only. 
   
10. Consider LAFC Retiree Health Benefits Liability Report Dated July 1, 2013, Prepared in Accordance 

with GASB Statement No. 45 (Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions). 

   
 Mike Briley, CPA, and Karen Campbell, CPA, stated that they reviewed and concur with the report 

prepared by James Marta & Assoc. After discussion, the Committee concluded that no action is 
necessary on this report, as the information is included in the draft Audit Report (Agenda Item 5) and 
the draft Year-End Financial Statements (Agenda Item 6), both of which will be considered by the full 
Commission on December 2. 

   
11. ADJOURNMENT  
   
 The meeting was adjourned at 2:45 p.m. 

 
 

3 
 



LAFCO of Monterey County ________________________________________________________________                     

  
   

 
 

 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
 
DATE:  December 2, 2013 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: LAFCO WARRANT REGISTER – OCTOBER 2013 
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Commission approve the expenditures for October 2013. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
Attached is a list of expenditures for the month of October 2013.  Total expenditures were 
$55,568.63. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachment: 
 October 2013 Warrant Register   

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 3 

1 
 



1 of 1

DATE CK#  NAME  DESCRIPTION  CHECK AMOUNT 
 DEPOSIT 
AMOUNT 

 ACCOUNT 
BALANCE 

93,356.64$                

10/1/13 EFT CalPERS Health October 2013 Health Insurance 4,420.92 88,935.72
10/11/13 EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit - SUI & ETT for 3rd Quarter 420.00 88,515.72
10/11/13 4434 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 10/4/13 Paid 10/11/13 1,613.45 86,902.27
10/11/13 4435 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 10/4/13 Paid 10/11/13 1,592.75 85,309.52
10/11/13 4437 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 10/4/13 Paid 10/11/13 4,323.38 80,986.14
10/11/13 4436 Mari L Rodin For Payroll Period Ending 10/4/13 Paid 10/11/13 1,695.57 79,290.57
10/11/13 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 2,242.72 77,047.85
10/11/13 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement Contribution 2,224.98 74,822.87
10/11/13 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 842.90 73,979.97
10/11/13 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,457.60 71,522.37
10/11/13 4438 County of Monterey, Information Technology Computer Support Services through 8/23/13 1,322.67 70,199.70
10/11/13 4439 Office of County Counsel - Co of Monterey Legal Services for August 2013 414.96 69,784.74
10/11/13 4440 SlingShot Connections Temp Services: Jimenez, Alma for W/E 9/22 & 9/29 418.88 69,365.86
10/11/13 4441 Rabobank Visa Card Hotel for CaLafco Conference; Telephone Exp; Office Supplies 4,048.61 65,317.25
10/15/13 TFR Funds Transfer 150,000.00 215,317.25
10/24/13 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 10/18/13 Paid 10/25/13 9,140.41 206,176.84
10/25/13 4442 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 10/18/13 Paid 10/25/13 206,176.84
10/25/13 4443 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 10/18/13 Paid 10/25/13 206,176.84
10/25/13 4444 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 10/18/13 Paid 10/25/13 206,176.84
10/25/13 4445 Mari L Rodin For Payroll Period Ending 10/18/13 Paid 10/25/13 206,176.84
10/25/13 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 2,233.08 203,943.76
10/25/13 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement Contribution 2,224.98 201,718.78
10/25/13 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 765.25 200,953.53
10/25/13 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,221.42 198,732.11
10/25/13 4446 Alhambra Water Dispenser Rental 26.66 198,705.45
10/25/13 4447 AT&T Telephone Service from 9/12/13-10/11/13 146.85 198,558.60
10/25/13 4448 Bianchi, Kasavan & Pope, LLP Progress Billing Audit Services #1 5,000.00 193,558.60
10/25/13 4449 Hayashi & Wayland, LLP Accounting Services #72520 3,000.00 190,558.60
10/25/13 4450 Postmaster Box#1369 12 Month Renewal 140.00 190,418.60
10/25/13 4451 Principal Life November 2013 Benefits: LTD,ADD,STD,Life 13.97 190,404.63
10/25/13 4452 SlingShot Connections Temp Services: Jimenez, Alma for W/E 10/6/13 196.35 190,208.28
10/25/13 4453 Gail Lawrence Supplies Reimbursement 43.99 190,164.29
10/25/13 4454 Mari Rodin Travel Reimbursement 350.00 189,814.29
10/25/13 4455 Bruce Lindsey Nov 2013 Rent 1,926.28 187,888.01

55,468.63$                  150,000.00$        

187,888.01$              Ending Balance 10/31/13

LAFCO
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

OF MONTEREY COUNTY
WARRANT REGISTER

FOR OCTOBER 2013

Beginning Balance  10/1/13



 

LAFCO of Monterey County ______________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
DATE:  December 2, 2013 
 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission  
 

FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: ANTICIPATED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
This report is for information only. 

 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
Following is a partial list of items that the Commission may consider in coming months.  
 

Anticipated Agenda Items Within Three Months – 

 

1. South Monterey County Fire Protection District – Sphere of Influence 
Amendment and Annexation of 5,000+ acres in South County. (LAFCO 
Application No. 13-05 was filed on July 10, 2013.  Incomplete status, pending 
the District-County approval of a property tax transfer agreement). 

 

Anticipated Agenda Items Within Six Months – 

 

   1.       Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District and Pajaro County 
             Sanitation District – Consolidation of Districts (Application is being prepared;  
             not yet received).  
 

2.        Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District – Municipal Services Review  
           (Initiated by LAFCO). 
  

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 4 

1 
 



Anticipated Future Agenda Items 
December 2, 2013  

3.        Castroville Community Services District and Moss Landing County Sanitation 
           District – Consolidation of Districts (Application is being prepared; not yet  
           received). 
 
4.        Castroville Community Services District – Municipal Services Review (Initiated 
            by LAFCO). 
 
5.        Marina Coast Water District – Municipal Services Review (Initiated by LAFCO. 
             Administrative Draft has been prepared by LAFCO staff and is currently being  
             reviewed with District. Executive Officer presented a status report to the  
             District’s Board of Directors on Nov. 18.   Coordinating steps are underway to 
             resolve boundary/service issues with Seaside County Sanitation District, prior  
             to scheduling of public hearings to adopt MSRs for MCWD and SCSD). 
 
6. Seaside County Sanitation District – Municipal Services Review (Initiated by 

                     LAFCO. Administrative draft has been prepared by LAFCO staff and is  
                     currently being reviewed with District.  In August 2013, the District retained 
                     planning and legal services to assist with this process.  Coordinating steps are  
                     underway to resolve boundary/service issues with Marina Coast Water 
                     District, prior to scheduling of public hearings to adopt the MSRs for MCWD  
                     and SCSD). 

 
7.       Carmel Area Wastewater District – Municipal Services Review and Sphere of  
            Influence Update (Initiated by LAFCO). 
 

         8.        Monterey Regional Waste Management District – Municipal Services Review 
                     and Sphere of Influence Update (Initiated by LAFCO). 
 
        9.          Carmel Area Wastewater District – Annexation of all or significant portions of  
                      the District’s existing Sphere of Influence near the mouth of the Carmel 
                      Valley.  (Application is being prepared; not yet received). 
 
        10.     City of Soledad  — Several potential applications for a Sphere of Influence  
                      Amendment and Annexations to include the “Miravale IIb” subdivision (96 
                      acres), Los Coches Adobe and other parcels.  

 

Anticipated Agenda Items Within Twelve Months – 

 

1.    Carmel Area Wastewater District – Sphere of Influence Amendment and     
  Annexation of the September Ranch property in Carmel Valley. 
 

2.    City of Gonzales – Comprehensive Sphere of Influence Amendment. 
 

2 
 



Anticipated Future Agenda Items 
December 2, 2013  

3.    Marina Coast Water District – Sphere of Influence Amendment and    
  Annexation of portions of the former Fort Ord to provide water and 
wastewater services. Coordinating steps are underway to resolve 
boundary/service issues with Seaside County Sanitation District, prior to 
scheduling of public hearings to consider Sphere Updates and annexations for 
MCWD and SCSD. 
 

4.  Seaside County Sanitation District – Sphere of Influence Amendment to 
include portions of the former Fort Ord to provide wastewater services. In 
August 2013, the District retained planning and legal services to assist in 
completing this process within 18 months.  Coordinating steps are underway to 
resolve boundary/service issues with Marina Coast Water District, prior to 
scheduling of public hearings to consider Sphere updates and annexations for 
SCSD and MCWD. 

 
5.   City of Seaside – Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation of the 
          proposed Monterey Downs Project, Horse Park and Central Coast Veterans 
          Cemetery. 
 

          6.    LAFCO’s Human Resources Rules and Regulations – Comprehensive update  
                   (Initiated by LAFCO). 
 
          7.    Salinas Valley Memorial Healthcare System – Municipal Service Review and 
                    Sphere of Influence Update (Initiated by LAFCO).   
 
Anticipated Agenda Items With No Timeline Estimate - 
 

1. City of Marina – Annexation of portions of the former Fort Ord within the 
City’s Sphere of Influence. 
 

2. County Service Area 15 (Serra Village/Toro Park) – Possible reorganization of 
Government Structure and Services. 

 
3. Northern Salinas Valley Mosquito Abatement District – Sphere of Influence 

Amendment and Annexation of the Chualar/Gonzales Area. May include a 
Municipal Services Review update, to be initiated by LAFCO. 

 
4. Soledad Community Health Care District – Comprehensive Sphere of 

Influence Amendment and Annexation.  May include a Municipal Services 
Review update. 

  
5. Mission Soledad Rural Fire Protection District – Sphere of Influence 

Amendment and Annexation to include build-out of the proposed Paraiso 
Springs Resort. 

3 
 



Anticipated Future Agenda Items 
December 2, 2013  

6. City of Greenfield – Potential Commercial/Industrial and Residential 
Annexation Proposals (Franscioni, Scheid, Rich and  Others). 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
Kate McKenna, AICP,  
Executive Officer 
 

4 
 



LAFCO of Monterey County _______________________________________________________________                     

 LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
 P.O. Box 1369 132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 

Salinas, CA 93902  Salinas, CA 93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838 Fax (831) 754-5831 
                                 www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
DATE:  December 2, 2013 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MEETINGS FOR 2014 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is recommended that the Commission approve the attached schedule of regular LAFCO 
Meetings for 2014. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
The attached draft schedule provides for regular LAFCO meetings on the  
fourth Monday of each month, with the following exceptions: 
 

• July – No meeting to allow a summer recess. 
• November – No Meeting due to Thanksgiving Holiday, combined with early 

December meeting.  
• December – Meeting on first Monday to avoid conflict with holiday schedule 

later in the month. 
 
If the need arises, the Commission may set special meetings in accordance with the bylaws. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachment: 
 Schedule of regular LAFCO meetings for 2014 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 5 

 
 



LAFCO of Monterey County 
 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 

 
2014 SCHEDULE OF REGULAR LAFCO MEETINGS  

Adopted _____ 
 
 

January 27 
 

February 24 
 

March 24 
 

April 28 
 

May 19 
 

June 23 
 

July – No Meeting 
 

 August 25 
 

September 22 
 

October 27 
 

November – No Meeting 
 

December 1 
 
 
All regular meetings begin at 4:00 p.m. and will be held in the Board of Supervisors Chambers, 
located on the first floor of the Monterey County Government Center, 168 West Alisal, Salinas, 
California. 

Prepared: 11/19/13  
 



LAFCO of Monterey County ____________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
 

DATE:  December 2, 2013 

 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2013 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee recommends that the Commission: 
 
 1.  Receive a presentation from Ms. Karen Campbell, CPA; 
 2.  Seek public comment, and 
 3.  Discuss and adopt the final audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee met on November 7 to review and recommend adoption of 
the independent auditors’ report for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2013. As requested by 
the Committee, the enclosed report includes a minor clarification of accrued leave benefits.  A 
request to show comparative year data will be implemented in future audit reports.  
 
Karen Campbell, CPA, Bianchi, Kasavan and Pope, has issued an unqualified opinion, the highest 
level of assurance that an auditor can provide to a public agency.  Ms. Campbell will present the  
report and respond to questions.   
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Enclosure: 
 Final Audit for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 6 



LAFCO of Monterey County ____________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
 

DATE:  December 2, 2013 

 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: DRAFT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR JUNE 30, 2013 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee recommends that the Commission: 
 
 1.  Receive a presentation from Mr. Mike Briley, CPA; 
 2.  Seek public comment, and 
 3.  Discuss and adopt the draft financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2013. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee met on November 7 to review and recommend adoption of 
financial statements for the period ending June 30, 2013.   
 
Mike Briley, CPA and Managing Partner, Hayashi and Wayland, will present the report and 
respond to questions.  The report has been reconciled as part of the independent audit process 
(Agenda Item No. 6).  It also includes a minor clarification of accrued leave benefits, as 
requested by the Committee. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Enclosure: 
 Financial Statements for Period Ending June 30, 2013 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 7 

 
 































LAFCO of Monterey County ____________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
 

DATE:  December 2, 2013 

 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: DRAFT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee recommends that the Commission: 
 
 1.  Receive report from Executive Officer; 
 2.  Seek public comment, and 
 3.  Adopt the draft Financial Statements for the Quarter One Period ending September  
                   30, 2013. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee met on November 7 to review and recommend adoption of 
financial statements for the first quarter ending September 30, 2013. 
 
Income and expenses are as anticipated for this period.  As of September 30, almost all 
contributions had been received from local agencies (all contributions were received by 
November 1).  Actual expenses are below the budgeted expenses.   
 
Mr. Mike Briley, CPA and Managing Partner, Hayashi and Wayland, will be available to assist in 
responding to questions. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
Enclosure: 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 8 

 
 



 Draft Financial Statements, September 30, 2013 

 
 





























 

LAFCO of Monterey County _________________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
DATE:  December 2, 2013 
 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission  
 

FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: 2013 LEGISLATIVE REVIEW AND 2014 LEGISLATIVE AGENDA OF THE 

CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSIONS  
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Commission receive this report for information only, or provide 
direction regarding the legislative activities of the California Association of Local Agency 
Formation Commissions. 

 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
This report provides information about new laws taking effect on January 1, 2014 and discusses 
proposed legislative priorities and policies of the California Association of Local Agency 
Formation Commission (CALAFCO). The report also transmits a recent bulletin about other 
CALAFCO activities.  
 
LAFCO-Related Legislation Chaptered in 2013  
 
Minor, technical changes in the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act 
of Act of 2000 were chaptered in 2013. Attachment 1 highlights these changes. Local LAFCO 
policies and procedures were reviewed for compliance with the law.  No local updates are 
needed this year. 
 
Annual Review of 2014 Legislative Policies  
 
Attachment 1 also discusses the upcoming legislative session and intended areas of advocacy 
by CALAFCO. CALAFCO requests input on additions or changes to 2013 Legislative Policies and 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 9 

1  



priorities.  The CALAFCO Board will consider input from member LAFCOs in February, and will 
adopt 2014 policies and priorities at that time.  Based on that guidance, the CALAFCO 
Legislative Committee will review all LAFCO-related legislation and recommend actions by the 
Board of Directors.  Member LAFCOs will have the opportunity to comment on legislation to 
CALAFCO, or directly to legislators, throughout the season.  
 
Annual review of CALAFCO’s legislative policies by the LAFCO of Monterey County is an early 
opportunity to help shape CALAFCO’s issues and positions for the coming legislative season. 
While no comments are suggested by the Executive Officer at this time, the Commission may 
direct the Executive Officer to take action.   
 
Quarterly CALAFCO Bulletin 
 
Attachment 2 is a November 2013 report on various activities of the CALAFCO Board of 
Directors, including a UC Davis-CALAFCO Symposium that Commissioner Darington and the 
Executive Officer will attend on December 9. 
 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS: 
 
In lieu of accepting this report as information only, the Commission may direct the Executive 
Officer to forward comments to the CALAFCO Board of Directors. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. 2014 Legislative Issues and Policies, November 8, 2013 Report from the CALAFCO 
Executive Director to the Board of Directors (includes a copy of the current CALAFCO 
2013 Legislative Policies). 

2. CALAFCO Quarterly Bulletin, November 2013 

2  













CALAFCO WELCOMES TEHAMA LAFCO TO THE 
ASSOCIATION 
We are proud to welcome Tehama LAFCo as a member of the 

Association. Look for a full article on Tehama LAFCo in the next 

edition of The Sphere. 

2014 Annual Conference Update 
At their November 8 meeting, the CALAFCO Board decided to 

move the conference to the new dates of October 15 – 17 so as 

not to conflict with the California Special Districts Association 

(CSDA) annual conference, which is scheduled for the same 

dates as the September dates. We are still at the DoubleTree by 

Hilton in Ontario with our host San Bernardino LAFCo. We are 

looking forward to a great conference with lots of things to do 

and see in Ontario. More information about the conference will 

be available soon. For now, mark your calendars for OCTOBER 

15 – 17, 2014! 

2014 Staff Workshop 
The 2014 Staff Workshop is scheduled for April 23 – 25, 2014 

at the DoubleTree by Hilton in the Berkeley Marina. Our host for 

the workshop is Alameda and the Bay area LAFCos. The Host and 

Program Committees have begun their planning and details will 

be made available soon. 

CALAFCO Board 2014 Committees  
The CALAFCO Board appointed members to the 2014 standing 

committees are as follows: 

Legislative Committee Nominations Committee 

Gay Jones  Julie Allen 

William Kirby Mary Jane Griego 

John Leopold Juliana Inman 

Mike McGill Mike Kelley 

Eugene Montanez        Elliot Mulberg (Chair) 

Josh Susman  

Robert Bergman (a) Awards Committee 

James Curatalo (a) Larry Duncan 

Mary Jane Griego (a) Mary Jane Griego (Chair) 

Juliana Inman (a) John Leopold 

Ted Novelli (a) Ted Novelli 

Stephen Tomanelli 

2014 Annual Conference Josh Susman 

James Curatalo (Chair) Roger Welt 

Stephen Tomanelli 

CALAFCO U Courses  for 2014
CALAFCO staff is in the process of finalizing the schedule of 

sessions for the first half of 2014 with topics that include the 

Protest Process, in January in southern California; LAFCo Best 

Practices (content taken from the Projects of the Year 

nominations) in early spring in Sacramento, and another in June 

on LAFCo lawsuits and how to prepare for and deal with them 

successfully.  

LAFCo Symposium – December 9, 2013 
UC Davis Extension and CALAFCO are co-sponsoring a one day 

symposium in Sacramento to celebrate the 50th birthday of 

LAFCo. Mark your calendars to join us for lively panel discussions 

on hot issues facing LAFCos today, and hear our special keynote  

 

speaker the Honorable Robert Hertzberg. 

Details and registration information are available on the 

CALAFCO website. 

2013 Annual Conference in 
Squaw Valley a Success 
328 commissioners, staff, associate 

members and guest speakers 

attended the annual conference held 

in Squaw Valley this past August. 

There was good representation of LAFCos, with 48 of the 57 

member LAFCOs represented. Evaluation results showed a 

positive overall rating of 5.1 on a 6.0 scale. Participants 

mentioned the quality of the session topics, the location and 

venue, the banquet dinner and program, and the value of 

networking opportunities as some of the highlights.  

Financially the conference met the goals established by the 

Board. Our thanks to Placer, Nevada and El Dorado LAFCos for 

hosting, Josh Susman (Nevada LAFCo) as Committee Chair, and 

Sam Martinez (San Bernardino LAFCo) as Program Chair. 

CALAFCO Board Actions 
During their regular meeting on November 8, the Board 

addressed several administrative issues including: 

 The quarterly financial reports were reviewed and the 

budget is on track for the year. All financial reports are 

located on the website. 

 Approved recommended LAFCo staff appointments to the 

2014 Legislative Committee. 

 Directed the newly formed Recruitment and Nominations 

Committee to review the current absentee ballot voting 

policy and potential use of absentee ballots in the case of 

a run-off election, and report to the Board in February on 

any recommendations. 

 Approved the contract renewal for Pamela Miller as the 

Association’s Executive Director. 

 Approved the contract renewal for Jeni Tickler as the 

Association’s Administrator. 

Legislative Activities 
The 2013 legislative year saw 2,264 bills introduced, of which 

805 were chaptered and 96 were vetoed. CALAFCO’s bills 

included AB 1427 (Omnibus) and AB 743 (Logue), both of which 

were signed into law. The other CALAFCO bill, AB 453 (Mullin) 

died in Senate Appropriations.  A full report on the 2013 

legislative year is located on the CALAFCO website. 

The legislature will reconvene on January 7, 2014. CALAFCO’s 

Legislative Committee is scheduled to meet via conference call 

on November 25th, and in person on December 6th.  During their 

November 8th meeting, the Board gave consensus for the 

Legislative Committee to consider legislation that would change 

the MSR/SOI cycle from every 5 years to every 8 years, to 

coincide with the housing element update cycle. The Board also 

gave direction to the Legislative Committee to conduct outreach 

to freshman legislators who have been a LAFCo Commissioner 

as a way to build relations and partner with them on potential 

future LAFCo legislation. 

NNeewwss  ffrroomm  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

CCAALLAAFFCCOO  QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY NNoovveemmbbeerr  22001133

LawrenceG
Typewritten Text

LawrenceG
Typewritten Text

LawrenceG
Typewritten Text

LawrenceG
Typewritten Text

LawrenceG
Typewritten Text

LawrenceG
Typewritten Text

LawrenceG
Typewritten Text

LawrenceG
Typewritten Text

LawrenceG
Typewritten Text

LawrenceG
Typewritten Text

LawrenceG
Typewritten Text

LawrenceG
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2



1 

 
 

 
LAFCO of Monterey County _______________________________________________________________                    

 LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
                   P.O. Box 1369                         132 Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
                        Salinas, CA 93902                                             Salinas, CA 93901 
                         Telephone (831) 754-5838                            Fax (831) 754-5831         

                                                        www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 

KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 

 
 
DATE:  December 2, 2013 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, LAFCO Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT:  “HIGHLANDS POINT SANITARY ASSOCIATION” REORGANIZATION 

INVOLVING EXPANSION OF THE CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 
SPHERE OF INFLUENCE AND ANNEXATION TO THE DISTRICT OF NINE 
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL PARCELS LOCATED WEST OF THE HIGHLANDS 
INN AND STATE ROUTE 1, APPROXIMATELY FIVE MILES SOUTH OF CARMEL-
BY-THE-SEA.  (LAFCO FILE 13-04) 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Commission conduct a public hearing and adopt the attached 
resolution (Attachment 2) to: 

1. Consider a Negative Declaration adopted for the project by the County of 
Monterey, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines 
(Attachment 3); 

2. Approve an update of the Sphere of Influence of the Carmel Area Wastewater 
District; 

3. Approve the proposed annexation, and  

4. Waive Conducting Authority (“protest”) proceedings. 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 

Summary of the Proposal 

The proposal consists of an expansion of the Carmel Area Carmel Area Wastewater District’s 
Sphere of Influence to include nine parcels in the Carmel Highlands area, and annexation of 

AGENDA 
ITEM  

NO. 10 
10 

 



2 

these parcels to the District. The purpose of the proposal is to allow the residences to 
connect to the District’s sanitary sewer system, either now or in the future.  

The subject parcels are located on the west side of Highway 1; please see the attached 
location map (Attachment 1), which includes the individual parcel numbers and names of 
the property owners. The parcels are immediately adjacent to a parcel that is within the 
District’s existing boundary, having been annexed in 2009 (LAFCO file 08-07). 

This item was originally noticed for the August 26, 2013 LAFCO meeting. Owners of several 
of the subject properties attended the August meeting and expressed concerns. The 
Commission continued the item to its October 28 meeting to allow the primary applicant’s 
representative to coordinate with the other property owners to finalize per-parcel 
association costs, timing, and logistics.  

During that process, the owners of one property included in the original proposal decided to 
opt out of the annexation (Charles residence, on the proposal’s northern periphery). The 
Carmel Area Wastewater District Board approved the downsized proposal boundaries at its 
October 24 meeting. The primary applicant’s representative has stated to staff that all other 
property owners in the original proposal are now in support of the annexation. There are no 
known unresolved issues associated with the proposed action. The County of Monterey and 
the District support the proposal.  

Proposed Highlands Point Sanitary Association 

The subject properties are part of a private association being formed to share expenses for 
privately owned improvements (sanitary lines and pump station) that will connect to the 
District’s sanitary lines. Annexation to the District does not require a property owner to pay 
into the association. Participation in the association is voluntary, and the association is not 
subject to LAFCO oversight. However, it would be more costly and less practical for any one 
owner of these properties in the future to bypass the association and connect to the 
District’s infrastructure on his or her own.   

The parcels are developed with seven existing residences and two new residences under 
construction.  The County’s approved development permits for the Cappo residence, 
currently under construction, required annexation to the District’s sanitary lines. The other 
properties are on septic systems. Annexation to the District would not require property 
owners other than Mr. Cappo to connect to the District’s sanitary lines. Upon annexation, 
owners of each annexed property would gain the option to voluntarily connect to the 
District, either immediately or at a future date. 1  

The District’s connection fee is currently approximately $3,500 per residential unit. The 
District also requires a bond repayment cost of $11,760 per single-family residential dwelling 

                                                 
1 Pursuant to existing County regulations, property owners may be required to connect to sanitary sewer if 
their septic systems were to fail or if they were to propose a residential project (e.g. additional bedrooms or 
change of use) that would intensify wastewater generation beyond the capacity of the property’s septic 
system.  

 



3 

in the Highlands area. The District has deferred these costs until time of connection, as 
opposed to requiring payment upon annexation. There would be additional, privately 
arranged association costs to offset Mr. Cappo’s up-front design, engineering, and 
permitting expenditures. Each property owner wishing to connect to the District via the 
private infrastructure currently under construction as part of the Cappo project would be 
subject to these additional costs that are set and agreed upon by the association.  

Background 

There are no known well contamination issues on any of the subject parcels in this proposal. 
However, Carmel Highlands in general has experienced numerous problems with septic 
systems and contaminated water wells because of the area’s fractured granite bedrock, 
which is inefficient at dispersing wastewater downward and away from wells. In 2007, the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board alerted the County to an immediate potential threat 
to the public health, safety and welfare posed by permitting additional on-site wastewater 
disposal systems on individual lots in the Carmel Highlands.  

At the direction of the Regional Water Quality Control Board, the County of Monterey 
developed a plan for comprehensively addressing septic system-based wastewater 
management practices and requirements in the overall Carmel Highlands area (roughly Point 
Lobos to Malpaso Creek). The Carmel Highlands Onsite Wastewater Management Plan 
(OWMP) was adopted by the Board of Supervisors in December 2009. The Central Coast 
Regional Water Quality Control Board approved the OWMP in February 2010.  

To date, funding and other constraints have impaired full implementation of the OWMP's 
recommendations. Annexation of the subject parcels to the District is, however, an 
incremental step toward a comprehensive long-term solution to the existing public health 
and safety threat that exists in the overall Carmel Highlands area.  

Sphere of Influence and Annexation Analysis 

A Sphere of Influence expansion is needed because the nine parcels proposed for annexation 
are adjacent to, but not currently within, the District’s Sphere of Influence. Prior to 
approving a Sphere of Influence expansion, the Commission must consider and prepare a 
written statement relating to present and planned land uses, the need for, and present 
capacity of, public facilities and services, and the existence of any relevant social or 
economic communities of interest. These considerations, as well as the additional factors 
that the Commission must consider in the review of an annexation proposal, are addressed 
in the attached draft resolution.  

The draft resolution's determinations support approval of the proposed Sphere of Influence 
expansion and annexation. In addition, the District’s Municipal Service Review, which 
LAFCO approved in June 2006, supports expansion of the District into the Highlands area.  

Carmel Area Wastewater District Facilities 

The District’s treatment facility is adjacent to the Carmel River on the west side of Highway 
1.  Current average dry weather flow (ADWF) is approximately 1.8 MGD which represents 



4 

60% of the permitted capacity under the District’s National Discharge Permit Eliminative 
System (NPDES) permit for treatment and disposal of up to 3.0 MGD average dry weather 
flow. All ten of the properties proposed for annexation would contribute an estimated total 
of less than 3,000 gallons per day of additional wastewater, if they were all to connect to the 
District's sanitary system. At less than one quarter of one percent of the District’s current 
surplus capacity, this added flow will have little impact on the District treatment capacity. 

Public Agency Referrals and Public Noticing  

LAFCO staff referred the proposal to public agencies for review and comment on June 12, 
2013.  The application was legally noticed for an August 26, 2013 hearing in the Monterey 
County Herald, on August 2, 2013. Notice of the hearing was also posted on the LAFCO 
website and at the County Government Center and LAFCO office, and mailed to all known 
interested agencies, organizations and individuals. LAFCO has fully complied with all 
requirements and procedures for public agency referrals and public noticing.  

In addition, though not required to do so by State law since 2012, LAFCO mailed hearing 
notices for the original August 26, 2013 LAFCO hearing to property owners and voters within 
a 300-foot radius of the proposed annexation, as well as to the owners of the ten original 
(now nine) subject properties, 21 days before the meeting date. Staff also mailed courtesy 
copies of the August 26 agenda and Executive Officer report to the property owners when 
those materials became available.  

LAFCO staff met with the primary applicant and several neighbors in early October. Staff has 
not received any additional questions or concerns. No property owners attended the 
October 28 LAFCO meeting, at which this item was continued to December 2. As of this 
writing the primary applicant’s representative has indicated to staff that, after additional 
coordination with the property owners, all owners now support the proposal. However, no 
written confirmations to this effect were provided to staff. Staff will mail courtesy copies of 
the December 2 meeting agenda and Executive Officer report to all owners of the subject 
parcels as soon as those materials are available in the week of November 25.  

District/County Tax Transfer 

The proposed annexation will have no effect on existing property tax allocations. The 
Monterey County Board of Supervisors approved a “Zero Property Tax Transfer” on July 30, 
2013 (Resolution No: 13-278).  A copy of this resolution is on file in the LAFCO office. 

 Waiver of Conducting Authority (“Protest”) Proceedings 

Based on changes to Government Code section 56663 effective January 1, 2013, the 
Commission may waive Conducting Authority proceedings (also referred to as a protest 
hearing) unless written opposition is received prior to the close of the hearing. LAFCO staff 
has provided written notice of intent to waive the protest hearing process to owners of all 
ten of the subject properties. The draft resolution includes language formalizing the waiver 
of a protest hearing. If written opposition were to be received from a property owner, then 
State law would require a protest hearing for this proposal.  The protest hearing cannot be 
held prior to the expiration of the 30-day reconsideration period referenced above. If a 



5 

protest hearing were to be needed, it would be scheduled for the January 2014 Commission 
meeting.  

Environmental Determination 

The County of Monterey is the Lead Agency for this proposal under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). LAFCO is a Responsible Agency. In 2012 the County of 
Monterey analyzed the extension of sewer service to the ten subject properties (County file 
no. PLN120558), and adopted a Negative Declaration, indicating that the project will have no 
significant adverse environmental impacts. LAFCO staff has reviewed this determination. 
Within the draft resolution for this annexation, staff recommends that the Commission concur 
with this determination, based on its independent judgment of the application materials and 
the facts presented.   

Agency Comments 

The Monterey County Resource Management Agency submitted a memorandum on June 28, 
2013 indicating that the agency had no comments or concerns with respect to the proposed 
annexation. The County has taken a proactive role in supporting annexation of this entire 
grouping of properties in a single action rather than “piecemeal” annexation of lots.  

The Carmel Area Wastewater District's Board of Directors approved a resolution in support 
of the proposed annexation in 2012, including deferral of connection fees for the lots other 
than Mr. Cappo’s. In October 2013, the District’s Board reaffirmed its support for the current 
downsized proposal, including eight neighboring properties rather than the eleven that were 
contemplated in 2012. The resolution and supporting materials are on file in the LAFCO 
office. 

Recommended Conditions of Approval 

The recommended conditions of approval are contained in Sections 20 and 26 of the draft 
resolution. The proposal is approved subject to: 

a. Review and pre-clearance of the annexation by the United States Department of 
Justice pursuant to Section 5 of the Voting Rights Act; 

b. Completion of the reconsideration process described in Government Code section 
56895; 

c. Preparation of a map and geographic description acceptable to the State Board of 
Equalization; 

d. Payment of all fees incurred in the processing of the application consistent with the 
LAFCO fee schedule, including the fee required by the State Board of Equalization; 

e. The applicant association’s indemnification of LAFCO for any court costs and 
attorneys’ fees that may be required by a court to pay as a result of such action, and 

f. Payment of Carmel Area Wastewater District connection fees and other costs 
determined by the District. Payment for the Cappo parcel shall be due upon 
completion of the currently proposed annexation. Fees for the eight other subject 
parcels is deferred for present purposes and shall be paid to the District prior to 
connecting to the District’s wastewater system.   



6 

Conclusion  

The proposed Sphere expansion and annexation are a substantial step toward implementing 
the longer-term public health goal of reducing the number of septic systems in the Carmel 
Highlands Area. The proposal is consistent with the factors to be considered in the review of 
a proposal for a Sphere of Influence update and annexation. These factors, and an analysis of 
the proposal’s consistency with them, are included in the attached draft resolution. Staff 
recommends adoption of the attached resolution to approve the proposed Sphere of 
Influence amendment and annexation to the Carmel Area Wastewater District. 

Reconsideration  

Pursuant to Government Code 56895, after the Commission has adopted a resolution 
making determinations, any person or affected agency may file a written request with the 
LAFCO Executive Officer requesting amendments to or reconsideration of the resolution.  
The person or agency shall file the written request within 30 days of the adoption of the 
resolution by the LAFCO Commission making determinations.     

Next Steps 

Approval of this action will trigger the required “Reconsideration” period (please see the 
subsection above). As with all annexations in Monterey County, staff will also forward the 
Commission’s approval to the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) for preclearance during this 
time. The DOJ has up to 60 days within which to respond. Following satisfactory completion 
of the preceding items, staff will file a Certificate of Completion with the County Recorder’s 
Office (thereby effectuating the annexation), and will notify the State Board of Equalization.   

Alternative Actions 

In lieu of the recommended action, the Commission may act to deny the Sphere of Influence 
amendment and reorganization application or to amend the boundaries of the proposed 
Sphere expansion and/or reorganization.  The Commission may also act to modify, delete, or 
add any appropriate conditions of approval for the proposal. Substantial changes to the draft 
resolution would require a continuation of the agenda item, with direction to the Executive 
Officer to prepare a new draft Resolution based on the Commission’s findings.   

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachments:    

1. Location Map 
2. Draft Resolution, including Annexation Map and Geographic Description     
3. Adopted Negative Declaration (County of Monterey File No. PLN120558)  



7 

 
cc:   Owners of subject properties 
        Robert Carver, AIA, Studio Carver 
        Drew Lander, CAWD 
        Bob Schubert, County of Monterey 
        Nikki Fowler, County of Monterey 
         



RESOLUTION NO. 13-XX 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY 
COUNTY MAKING DETERMINATIONS APPROVING THE PROPOSED “HIGHLANDS 
POINT SANITARY ASSOCIATION” ANNEXATION INVOLVING EXPANSION OF THE 
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT SPHERE OF INFLUENCE AND ANNEXATION TO 
THE DISTRICT OF NINE SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL PARCELS: APNs 241-182-
004/005 (TO BE MERGED), 241-182-012, -015, -018, -020, -023, 024, -025, and -
026. THE PARCELS ARE LOCATED WEST OF THE HIGHLANDS INN AND STATE ROUTE 
1, APPROXIMATELY FIVE MILES SOUTH OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA.  (LAFCO FILE 13-04) 

 
RESOLVED, by the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County, State of 

California, that 
 
 WHEREAS, an application for the proposed “Highlands Point Sanitary Association” 
annexation involving a review and update of the Sphere of Influence of the Carmel Area 
Wastewater District and annexation to the District of ten residential properties on 
approximately 9.8 acres, was filed and accepted for filing by the Executive Officer of this 
Local Agency Formation Commission, pursuant to Title 6, Division 1, commencing with Section 
56000, et seq. of the Government Code; and  
 

WHEREAS, the application was subsequently reduced to a total of nine parcels; and 
 

WHEREAS, the parcels are developed with seven existing residences and two new 
residences under construction; and 
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the proposal is to allow these parcels to connect to the 
district’s wastewater system; and  

 
WHEREAS, Carmel Highlands is an area that has experienced severe problems with 

septic systems and contaminated water wells for many years, because of the fractured 
granite bedrock in the area; and 
 
 WHEREAS, In 2007 the Regional Water Quality Control Board alerted the County of 
Monterey to the immediate potential threat to the public health, safety and welfare posed 
by permitting additional on-site wastewater disposal systems on individual lots in the Carmel 
Highlands; and 
 
 WHEREAS, annexation to the District would not require owners of these nine existing 
properties to connect to the District's sanitary lines. Upon annexation, the individual 
property owners would gain the option to voluntarily connect to the District at a future date; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, a Certificate of Filing was issued for the application on August 7, 2013; and  
 

1 
 



WHEREAS, the Carmel Area Wastewater District has passed a resolution in support of 
annexing the properties in question; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the affected territory is inhabited; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Executive Officer, pursuant to Government Code Section 56658, set 
August 26, 2013 as the hearing date on this proposal and gave notice of hearing; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the public hearing by this Commission was held upon the date and at the 
time and place specified in the notice of hearing and in any order or orders continuing such 
hearing, and was subsequently continued to October 28, 2013 and to December 2, 2013; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Executive Officer, pursuant to Government Code Section 56665, has 
reviewed this proposal and prepared a report, including recommendations thereon, and has 
furnished a copy of this report to each person entitled to a copy; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the purpose for this Sphere of Influence update and annexation is to 
provide sewer service to one proposed residence and eight other parcels with residential uses 
consistent with the County of Monterey General Plan and zoning; and 
  
 WHEREAS, this Commission, on August 26 and December 2, 2013 heard from 
interested parties, considered the proposal and the report of the Executive Officer and 
considered the factors determined by the Commission to be relevant to this proposal, 
including, but not limited to, factors specified in Government Code Sections 56425(e) and 
56668; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Monterey adopted a Negative Declaration for extension of 
sanitary sewer service to the parcels in question pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based on its independent judgment of the application materials and the 
facts presented, the Local Agency Formation Commission, as a responsible agency, concurs 
that the proposal will have significant adverse impacts on the environment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 56663, the Commission may waive 
Conducting Authority proceedings unless written opposition is received prior to the close of 
the hearing, and LAFCO staff has provided the required written notice of intent to waive the 
protest hearing process to owners of each of the subject properties under this section; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County does 
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER as follows: 
 
 Section 1. LAFCO staff has provided the required written notice of intent to waive 
the protest hearing process to owners of each of the subject properties pursuant to 
Government Code Section 56663. No written protests have been received. 
 

2 
 



Section 2. In determining the Sphere of Influence of the Carmel Area Wastewater 
District the Commission, in accord with Section 56425(e) of the Government Code, has 
considered and prepared a written statement of its determinations with respect to each of the 
following:  

 The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space 
lands.    

The proposed expansion of the Sphere of Influence includes nine residential parcels 
on approximately nine acres. The parcels include seven existing single-family 
residences and two new single-family residences under construction. There are no 
additional planned uses on these properties. The proposed addition to the District’s 
Sphere of Influence does not contain agricultural or open space uses, nor are such 
uses planned for in the County General Plan. 
 

 The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area, and  

 The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the 
agency provides or is authorized to provide. 

At the direction of the Regional Water Quality Control Board, the County of 
Monterey  has developed a plan for comprehensively addressing septic system-based 
wastewater management practices and requirements in the overall Carmel Highlands 
area (roughly Point Lobos to Malpaso Creek). The Carmel Highlands Onsite 
Wastewater Management Plan (OWMP) was adopted by the Board of Supervisors in 
December 2009. The Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board approved 
the OWMP in February  2010. To date, funding and other constraints have impaired 
full implementation of the OWMP's recommendations. However, it is likely that the 
OWMP will precipitate Carmel Highlands area septic systems being incrementally 
eliminated over time as property owners select to, or are required to, connect to a 
centralized wastewater treatment system.   

Annexation to the District, as currently proposed, is consistent with the intent of the 
OWMP, in that it would provide an option for owners of nine existing residential 
properties to connect to sanitary sewer service, thereby allowing an incremental 
reduction in the number of septic systems disposing of sewage effluent in the 
currently overburdened Highlands wastewater setting.  

The Carmel Area Wastewater District is currently at approximately 60 percent of its 
treatment capacity, and the proposed expansion would use less than one quarter of 
one percent of the surplus capacity. Expansion of District’s Sphere of Influence would 
be environmentally superior to continuing with the existing septic systems.  The 
District is the only public or private utility able to provide for wastewater disposal in 
the area. 

The operations and boundaries of the Carmel Area Wastewater District were 
reviewed within the Carmel Valley Municipal Service Review which was approved 
by LAFCO in 2006.  This analysis did not disclose any deficiencies in the services or 
structure of the District.  However, in the “Summary and Determinations” section 
of the report it is recommended that the Sphere of Influence of the District “should 

3 
 



be updated to comprehensively address existing needs in the area.  In particular, 
the coastal areas should be evaluated as smaller individual systems and septic tanks 
are getting older.  The benefits of providing sewer service that complies with State 
regulations needs to be evaluated against the cost of operating smaller systems.” 
 

 The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the 
commission determines that they are relevant to the agency. 

There are no specific social or economic communities of interest in this geographic 
area that are relevant to the proposal to expand the Sphere of Influence of the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District. 
 

 Section 3.   The Commission has hereby reviewed and updated the Sphere of 
Influence of the Carmel Area Wastewater District as required by Government Code 56425(g). 
The current proposal for a minor Sphere of Influence amendment is compatible with the 
existing Sphere of Influence and this Sphere is consistent with the current needs of the 
community served.   
 

Section 4. Population and population density; land area and land use; per capita 
assessed valuation; topography, natural boundaries, and drainage basins; proximity to other 
populated areas; the likelihood of significant growth in the area, and in adjacent 
incorporated and unincorporated areas, during the next 10 years (Gov. Code § 56668(a).)    

There are approximately 15 to 20 residents associated with the nine parcels.  The 
properties are used for single-family dwellings except for the Cappo and Murray parcels, 
each with a new residence that is under construction.  Numerous small drainage basins exist 
within the annexation area, as it is located on the coastline. The nearest population centers 
are in the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea and other Monterey Peninsula cities to the north.  
Growth potential in the Carmel Highlands area is very limited.   

Section 5.  The need for organized community services; the present cost and adequacy 
of governmental services and controls in the area; probable future needs for those services 
and controls; probable effect of the proposed … annexation … and of alternative courses of 
action on the cost and adequacy of services and controls in the area and adjacent areas.  
(Gov. Code § 56668(b).)    

The density of development in the area, coupled with the area's hydrogeological 
characteristics, makes the continued use of on-site septic systems problematic. The Carmel 
Area Wastewater District is the only organization in the area capable of providing 
wastewater service. The proposed annexation area is contiguous with the nearest existing 
District boundary. The District's existing treatment facility serves the greater Carmel area 
with more than 6,600 service connections.       

Section 6. The effect of the proposed action and of alternative actions, on 
adjacent areas, on mutual social and economic interests, and on the local governmental 
structure of the county.  (Gov. Code § 56668(c).) 

The proposed construction of lateral connections to the existing District wastewater trunk 
line in Highway 1 in the Carmel Highlands area will have no effect on adjacent properties, or 

4 
 



on mutual social and economic interests, or on local governmental structure of the County. 
Annexation to the District would not require owners of the affected area's nine existing 
residences to connect to the District's sanitary lines. Upon annexation, the individual 
property owners would gain the option to voluntarily connect to the District at a future date. 
However, the sewer line would be sized to accommodate the connection of these residences 
in the future. The connection fee is currently approximately $3,500 per residential unit. The 
District also requires a bond repayment cost of $11,760 per single-family residential dwelling 
in the Highlands area. The District has deferred these costs until time of connection, as 
opposed to requiring payment upon annexation. There would be additional, privately 
arranged association costs to each of the property owners, to offset Mr. Cappo’s up-front 
design, engineering, and permitting expenditures.   

 
   Section 7. The conformity of both the proposal and its anticipated effects with 
both the adopted commission policies on providing planned, orderly, efficient patterns of 
urban development, and the policies and priorities set forth in Section 56377.  (Gov. Code § 
56668(d).) 

The annexation of these nine parcels to the Carmel Area Wastewater District will 
help address significant environmental impacts associated with septic system contamination 
of local wells and the marine environments.  Annexation to the District is consistent with 
LAFCO policies. Section 56377 pertains to development being directed away from open-
space and agricultural land, unless to do so would not promote the planned, orderly, 
efficient development of an area.  The land proposed for annexation is neither designated by 
the County for open space or agricultural use, nor is it in any form of agricultural production. 

 
Section 8. The effect of the proposal on maintaining the physical and economic 

integrity of agricultural lands, as defined in Section 56106.  (Gov. Code § 56668(e).) 
The proposal will have no impact on maintaining the physical and economic integrity 

of agricultural lands. The parcels in question are not designated in the County General Plan 
for an agricultural use.   

Section 9. The definiteness and certainty of the boundaries of the territory, the 
nonconformance of proposed boundaries with lines of assessment or ownership, the creation 
of islands or corridors of unincorporated territory, and other similar matters affecting the 
proposed boundaries.  (Gov. Code § 56668(f).) 

The project boundaries are definite and certain and consistent with assessment lines 
and ownership.   
 

Section 10. Consistency with city or county general and specific plans.  (Gov. Code 
§ 56668(g).) 

The present uses are consistent with the general plan and zoning ordinance. 
 

Section 11. The sphere of influence of any local agency, which may be applicable 
to the proposal being reviewed.  (Gov. Code §§ 56375.5, 56668(h).) 

The proposed annexation area is immediately adjacent to a parcel that is within the 
District’s existing boundary, having been annexed in 2009 (LAFCO file 08-07).  The parcels 

5 
 



are neither within, nor in close proximity, to the sphere of influence of any other 
governmental body which could support the development with wastewater services. 
 

Section 12. The comments of any affected local agency.  (Gov. Code § 56668(i).) 
No local agency contacted through the LAFCO referral process submitted comments 

critical of the proposal, nor did any agency suggest changes in the proposal or conditions to 
its approval.   

 
Section 13. The ability of the newly formed or receiving entity to provide the 

services which are the subject of the application to the area, including the sufficiency of 
revenues for those services following the proposed boundary change. (Gov. Code § 56668(j).) 
 The Carmel Valley Municipal Services Review (MSR) has not identified any shortfalls 
in the District’s services or finance.  The peak flow of the District is currently about 60% of 
the permitted capacity.  The annexation would result in a maximum of approximately 3000 
gallons per day of additional wastewater, if all nine properties were to connect to the 
District’s sanitary lines. This increase would constitute a nominal amount (approximately 
0.25% of the District’s estimated surplus capacity.  The MSR states that rates to property 
owners “are designed to recover projected operation, maintenance, and replacement 
expenses…based on their proportional contribution to the total wastewater load.”  At such 
time as property owners connect to the District’s infrastructure, they will be required to pay 
applicable connection fees, sewer user fees, construction costs, and a contribution toward 
annual payments on a District bond issue.  
 

Section 14. Timely availability of water supplies adequate for projected needs as 
specified in Section 65352.5.  (Gov. Code § 56668(k).) 

Water supply is a critical issue in the greater Monterey Peninsula area.  Development 
of parcels within the boundaries of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
depends on the availability of water through an allocation system based on pro-rationing of 
water within the political jurisdiction.  However, in this case there are existing or entitled 
uses on all of the ten affected parcels.  No additional water use would be triggered by the 
proposed annexation.   

 
Section 15. The extent to which the proposal will affect a city or cities and the 

county in achieving their respective fair shares of the regional housing needs as determined 
by the appropriate council of governments consistent with Article 10.6 (commencing with 
Section 65580) of Chapter 3 of Division 1 of Title 7.  (Gov. Code § 56668(l).) 

The proposal involved unincorporated land within the County’s land use jurisdiction.  
The annexation of these nine existing parcels to a wastewater district will in no way affect 
the County’s ability to achieve, or not achieve, its respective fair share of regional housing 
needs.      
 

Section 16. Any information or comments from the landowner or owners, voters, 
or residents of the affected territory.   (Gov. Code § 56668(m).) 

The primary applicant, Mr. Cappo, has provided evidence of consent from owners of 
the affected properties. Based on association meetings, additional coordination, and the 

6 
 



withdrawal of one property owner subsequent to the August 26, 2013 LAFCO meeting, no 
affected property owners are known to be in opposition to the proposal.     

 
Section 17. Any information relating to existing land use designations. (Gov. Code 

§ 56668(n).) 
The properties are designated for low-density single-family residential use.   
 
Section 18. The extent to which the proposal will promote environmental justice.  

As used in this subdivision, "environmental justice" means the fair treatment of people of all 
races, cultures, and incomes with respect to the location of public facilities and the provision 
of public services.   (Gov. Code § 56668(o).) 

Because of the nature of the proposed action, there are no economic justice issues.     
 

Section 19. The exchange of property tax.  (Revenue and Taxation Code § 99.01.) 
A “Zero Property Tax Transfer” was approved by the Monterey County Board of 

Supervisors on July 30, 2013 (Resolution No: 13-278).  A copy of this resolution is on file in 
the LAFCO office. 

 
 Section 20.  Said proposal is approved subject to the following terms and conditions:   
a. Review and pre-clearance of the annexation by the United States Department of Justice 

pursuant to Section 5 of the Voting Rights Act; 
b. Completion of the reconsideration process described in Government Code section 

56895; 
c. Preparation of a map and geographic description acceptable to the State Board of 

Equalization; 
d. Payment of all fees incurred in the processing of the application consistent with the 

LAFCO fee schedule, including the fee required by the State Board of Equalization; 
e. The applicant association’s indemnification of LAFCO for any court costs and attorneys’ 

fees that may be required by a court to pay as a result of such action, and 
f. Payment of Carmel Area Wastewater District connection fees. Payment for the Cappo 

parcel shall be due upon completion of the currently proposed annexation. Connection 
fees for the nine other subject parcels is deferred for present purposes and shall be paid 
to the District prior to connecting to the District’s wastewater system.   

 
 Section 21.  The Certificate of Completion shall not be issued until all terms and 
conditions are met. 
 

Section 22.  If a Certificate of Completion for a change of organization or 
reorganization has not been filed within one year after the Commission approves a proposal 
for that proceeding, the proceeding shall be deemed abandoned unless prior to the 
expiration of that year the Commission authorizes an extension of time for that completion. 
The extension may be for any period deemed reasonable to the Commission for completion 
of necessary prerequisite actions by any party. If a proceeding has not been completed 
because of the order or decree of a court of competent jurisdiction temporarily enjoining or 
restraining the proceedings, this shall not be deemed a failure of completion and the one-

7 
 



year period shall be tolled for the time that order or decree is in effect.  [Government Code 
Section 57001] 
  
 Section 23.   The boundaries of the territory proposed to be annexed are hereby 
approved as described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof.  Said territory is 
assigned the following distinctive short form designation: “HIGHLANDS POINT SANITARY 
ASSOCIATION.” 
 
 Section 24. The Local Agency Formation Commission is authorizing waiver of 
Conducting Authority proceedings. 
   
 Section 25. The Executive Officer is hereby authorized and directed to mail certified 
copies of this resolution in the manner and as provided in Section 56882 of the Government 
Code. 
 
 Section 26.   The applicant association agrees, as a condition of the approval of this 
application, to defend at its sole expense any action brought against LAFCO, the Commission 
and its staff, because of the approval of this application.  The applicant will reimburse LAFCO 
for any court costs and attorneys’ fees which may be required by a court to pay as a result of 
such action.  LAFCO may, at its sole discretion, participate in the defense of any such action; 
but such participation shall not relieve applicant of his obligations under this condition.  The 
obligation on the part of the applicant to indemnify LAFCO is effective upon the adoption of 
this resolution and does not require any further action.   
 

UPON MOTION OF Commissioner _______, seconded by Commissioner ______, the 
foregoing resolution is adopted this _____ day of December, 2013 by the following vote: 

 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
    ___________________________________ 

Louis R. Calcagno, Chair 
Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County 
 

 
 

ATTEST: I certify that the within instrument is a true 
and complete copy of the original resolution of 
said Commission on file within this office.    

 
 Witness my hand this 26th day of August, 2013 
 
 
 By: ___________________________________ 
      Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 

8 
 











































































1 
 

LAFCO of Monterey County _________________________________________________________________                     

  
 

 
 
 
 
KATE MCKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 

 

DATE:  December 2, 2013 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 

FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION – APPROVING OUT-OF-DISTRICT 
EXTENSION OF WATER SERVICE BY PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT TO FIVE AREAS FORMERLY SERVED BY ALISAL WATER 
CORPORATION (LAFCO File No. 13-07) 

 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 

This item is for information only. 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 

This report provides notice of an administrative action. 

Legal Context 

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act requires LAFCO approval of services provided outside of a 
special district’s boundaries. By local LAFCO policy, the Commission has authorized the 
Executive Officer to approve out-of-district extensions of services when there is a public 
health or safety issue.  The policy also requires the Executive Officer to inform the 
Commission at the next available meeting of any administratively approved service actions 
(Reference:  LAFCO Policies and Procedures, Section XV.1.e). 

Notice of Action 

This report provides notice of a November 22, 2013 administrative action to approve a 
request from the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District to provide out-of-district 
water service to five small water systems.  The systems were formerly served by the Alisal 
Water Corporation (ALCO), and are now owned and operated by Pajaro/Sunny Mesa 
Community Services District.  Please see the attached approval action with location map.  

The action brings the District into compliance with the requirement for LAFCO approval to 
extend service outside of boundaries. It is also a first step toward a planned annexation (and 
Sphere of Influence amendment) of these systems into the District. LAFCO and Pajaro/Sunny 
Mesa staff are working together to prepare that application.  LAFCO staff is also updating a 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

NO. 11 



2 
 

companion study -- the District’s Municipal Services Review. We anticipate that these items 
will be presented for consideration by the Commission in 2014.   

Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
Attachment: Administrative Determination Approving Request for Out-of-District Services,  
                        including Map Exhibit of Water Systems Owned and Operated by the District  
 
 
cc:   Don Rosa, Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District 
        Benny Young and Ed Muniz, County of Monterey Public Works Dept. 
        Nikki Fowler and Roger Van Horn, County of Monterey Environmental Health Bureau 
         



                                                                                                                                                Attachment 

LAFCO of Monterey County _________________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 

 

KATE MCKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer  
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF SERVICES,  
OUTSIDE OF DISTRICT BOUNDARIES, BY PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY  

SERVICES DISTRICT TO CERTAIN AREAS FORMERLY SERVED BY ALISAL 
WATER CORPORATION. (LAFCO FILE NO. 13-07) 

 
Government Code Section 56133 provides that a city or district may extend services by contract 
or agreement to areas outside its jurisdictional boundaries only if it first receives written 
approval from the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO). 

LAFCO of Monterey County’s Policies and Procedures provide that “The Executive Officer may 
administratively approve requests for service extension outside an agency’s jurisdictional 
boundary if the applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated the existence of a public health or 
safety issue as identified in writing from the local public health officer. The Executive Officer is 
required to inform LAFCO at the next available meeting of any administratively approved 
service agreements.” (Section XV.1.e) 

On November 22, 2013 the LAFCO Executive Officer approved extension of domestic water 
services by the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District (“District”) to five existing small 
water systems formerly serviced by the Alisal Water Corporation (“ALCO”). The five subject 
water systems are located in unincorporated northern Monterey County, outside of the 
District’s current boundaries and sphere of influence, and include Moss Landing and Prunedale 
areas of Blackie Road, Berta Canyon, Vierra Canyon, and Langley Canyon, the specific parcels of 
which are mapped in Exhibit A to this determination. The combined total of these areas 
includes approximately 1,300 residents, 550 service connections, and 3,000 acres of territory.   

The Executive Officer’s administrative approval was based on the following reasons: 

1.  The District’s application for proposed extension of potable water services to five existing 
small water systems was heretofore filed and accepted for filing by the Executive Officer of 
this Local Agency Formation Commission, pursuant to Title 6, Division 1, commencing with 
Section 56000, et seq. of the Government Code; and 

2. The District operates (since 2005) and owns (since 2007) the subject water systems, having 
been authorized by the United States District Court in 2004 to purchase and take over 
operations of these five water systems previously operated by ALCO. The Court’s action 
followed several years of legal proceedings and federal receivership stemming from ALCO’s 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 



failure to conform to federal Safe Drinking Water Act requirements, thereby creating an 
acute public health threat; and 

3. The District provides appropriate water quality testing, treatment, filtration, maintenance, 
and other similar services that have alleviated the water quality and supply problems that 
existed under ALCO’s ownership of these five water systems; and 

4. During the time that ALCO’s water systems were in federal receivership, various entities 
wrote letters of support for the District to be allowed to acquire the water systems that are 
the subject of this proposal. The Monterey County Board of Supervisors, homeowner 
associations, the Moss Landing Harbor District, Moss Landing Chamber of Commerce, and 
others submitted letters supporting the District. Copies are on file in the LAFCO office. In 
addition, the 2004 court order regarding the sale of these five water systems to the District 
noted that the customers of these systems “overwhelmingly favor[ed] sale of the systems to 
PSMCSD, a non-profit public agency”; and     

5. The District has determined that the proposal qualifies for exemption from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Sections 15061(b)(3), “the general rule that CEQA 
only applies to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the 
environment”; 15319 (“Annexation of Existing Facilities and Lots for Exempt Facilities”); and 
15320 (“Changes in Organization of Local Agencies”) of the CEQA Guidelines. LAFCO staff has 
reviewed the record and concurs with these previous environmental determinations; and 

6.  Provision of out-of-district services to these five areas is an interim step toward an eventual 
Sphere of Influence amendment and annexation of these areas into the District’s 
boundaries. On September 24, 2007, the Commission unanimously voted to waive LAFCO 
application fees for future Sphere of Influence amendment and annexation actions to bring 
these five areas into the District’s boundaries (Resolution 07-13). LAFCO policy is that a fee 
waiver may be approved if it is in the “…public’s best interest and/or is necessary for public 
health and safety reasons.” Staff has not billed the District for processing this interim out-
of-district service extension request for these same five areas. Waiver of LAFCO’s 
application processing fees for this interim out-of-district service extension is consistent 
with the intent of the Commission’s 2007 fee waiver determination; and 

7. The LAFCO Executive Officer has considered the parameters set forth in the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Act, Section 56133, for LAFCO approval of out-of-district provision of services and 
found them to be consistent with the current proposal, as discussed below. 

• Govt. Code 56133(c): The commission may authorize a city or district to provide new or 
extended services outside its jurisdictional boundaries and outside its sphere of influence 
to respond to an existing or impending threat to the public health or safety of the 
residents of the affected territory if both of the following requirements are met:  

(1) The entity applying for the contract approval has provided the commission with 
documentation of a threat to the health and safety of the public or the affected 
residents. 
The District acquired the five subject water systems as a result of a 2004 federal court 
order following several years of legal proceedings and receivership, resulting from acute 
water-quality public health problems under the previous ownership. The then-existing 

 2 



public health threat is well documented in records that are on file in the LAFCO office.   

(2) The commission has notified any alternate service provider, including any water 
corporation as defined in Section 241 of the Public Utilities Code, or sewer system 
corporation as defined in Section 230.6 of the Public Utilities Code, that has filed a map 
and a statement of its service capabilities with the commission.  
No alternative service providers are known to have filed such maps or statements.  

Section XV.1.e of LAFCO of Monterey County’s Policies and Procedures delegate to the 
Executive officer the authority to administratively approve requests for service extension 
outside an agency’s jurisdictional boundary pursuant to Section 56133(c) cited above; and 

8. The applicant District agrees, as a condition of the approval of this application, to defend at 
their sole expense any action brought against LAFCO, the Commission and its staff, because of 
the approval of this application.  The applicant will reimburse LAFCO for any court costs and 
attorneys’ fees which may be required by a court to pay as a result of such action.  LAFCO 
may, at its sole discretion, participate in the defense of any such action; but such participation 
shall not relieve applicant of his obligations under this condition.  The obligation on the part 
of the applicant to indemnify LAFCO is effective upon the signing of this document and does 
not require any further action.  

  
For these reasons and with these conditions, the proposal is consistent with State law and with 
Commission policy regarding service extension agreements. 
 

 
        _____________________________________ 

   Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer  
 
   ___________________ 
   Date 

 3 



SAN
BENITO 
COUNTY

Pajaro

DOLAN RD

CASTROVILLE BLVD

STRAWBERRY RD

HALL RD

SAN JUAN RD

LEWIS RD

SALINAS RD

E
LKH

OR
N

R D

SAN
 M

IG
U

EL C
AN

YO
N

 R
D

BLACKIE

RD

SANTA CRUZ 
COUNTY

Moss Landing Water 
System Inc

Langley/Valle Pacifico
 Water System

Vierra Canyon Water System

Blackie Road Mutual
 Water System #18

Castroville

NORMCOPajaro/Sunny Mesa CSD

Water Systems Owned and
Operated by Pajaro/Sunny
Mesa CSD

101

Monterey 
Bay

1

129

PAJARO/SUNNY MESA
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

0 1 2

Miles

LAFCO of Monterey County
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

P.O. Box 1369
Salinas, CA 93902
Telephone (831) 754-5838

132 W. Gabilan St., Suite 102
Salinas, CA 93901

FAX (831) 754-5831

SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Map prepared:11/14/2013

156

McBainD
Typewritten Text
                                          EXHIBIT A


	Agenda 12-2-13
	1. Draft Oct 28 2013 Minutes
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

	2. Draft  B and F Comm Nov. 7, 2013
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

	3. Draft Register of Warrants EOR 12-2-13
	KATE McKENNA, AICP

	3. Attachment - October 2013 Warrant Register[1]
	October 2013

	4.  Anticipated Items EOR 12-2-13
	Kate McKenna, AICP
	Executive Officer


	5. EOR Schedule 2014 LAFCO Regular Meetings  12-02-13
	Salinas, CA 93902  Salinas, CA 93901
	KATE McKENNA, AICP

	5. (1)Attachment Schedule  2014 LAFCO Regular Meeting Dates
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY
	January 27


	6. Draft EOR Audit for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012
	KATE McKENNA, AICP
	Executive Officer


	7. Draft EOR Financial Statements for June 30, 2012
	KATE McKENNA, AICP
	Executive Officer


	7. (1) Rev Attachment 6-30-13 Draft Financial Statements[1]
	8. Draft EOR Financial Statement for September 30, 2013
	KATE McKENNA, AICP
	Executive Officer


	8. (1) Rev Attachment 9-30-13 Draft Financial Statements[1]
	9.  CALAFCO EO report 12 02 13
	Kate McKenna, AICP
	Executive Officer


	9. (1) CALAFCO Attachments 12.02.13
	9. (2) CALAFCO Attachment- Nov Qtr Report 12-2-13
	10. - Highlands Point - 120213 EO report
	10. (2) Highlands Point Reso
	10. (3) Highlands Point IS-MND
	11. - PSMCSD - former ALCO EO Report 120213
	11. (1) PSMCSD - former ALCO areas Out of Area Service 120213 admin determination
	Kate McKenna, AICP

	11. (1a) Pajaro-Sunny Mesa 11-14-13
	Agenda 12-2-13.pdf
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY




